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The Directors of Chrysalis Resources Limited (“the Company”) present their report for the financial year ended 
30 June 2014. In order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the directors report as 
follows:  
 
Directors 
 
The names of directors, who held office during or, since the end of the year and up until the date of this report, 
are as follows: 

Dr Neale Fong Non-Executive Chairman  

Mr Leigh Ryan Managing Director Appointed 23 September 2014 

Mr Jian Hua Sang1 Non-Executive Director         Appointed 5 July 2013 

Mr Trevor Benson Non-Executive Director  Resigned 29 November 2013 

Mr Michael Griffiths2 Non-Executive Director  Resigned 23 September 2014 

Mr Grant Kidner Executive Director Resigned 29 November 2013 

Mr Bradley Marwood Non-Executive Director  Resigned 29 July 2013 

Mr Adrian Paul Non-Executive Director Resigned 29 November 2013 

Ms Jing Wang3  Executive Director Resigned 23 September 2014 
Notes: 
1. Mr Jian Hua Sang was appointed as Executive Director on 5 July 2013 and Interim Chief Executive Officer on 

5 August 2013.  On 2 December 2013 Mr Sang resigned as Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer and 
remained as a Non-Executive Director. 

2. Mr Michael Griffiths was appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Bradley Marwood on 5 April 2013 and subsequently 
appointed as Non-Executive director on 26 July 2013 and resigned on 23 September 2014. 

3. Ms Jing Wang was appointed Executive Director on the 1 November 2013 and resigned on the 23 September 2014. 

Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated. 

 
The particulars of the qualifications, experience and special responsibilities of each director as at year end and 
until the date of this report are as follows: 
 
Dr Neale Fong – MBBS Dip CS MTS  MBA FAICD FACHSM (Hon) 
Non-Executive Chairman 
 
Dr Fong has extensive experience in management of large and complex organisations, especially in the health 
and human services field. He is a qualified medical practitioner holding Bachelors Degrees in Medicine and 
Surgery from the University of Western Australia as well as a Masters in Business Administration from the UWA 
Business School. He also holds a Masters Degree in Theological Studies from Regent College, University of 
British Columbia. 
 
Dr Fong is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and is an experienced chairman and 
director.  He is also a non-executive director of Sleep Studies Australia Pty Ltd and Chairman of Bethesda 
Hospital Inc and a director of Mining Developments International Ltd, a public unlisted company. 
 
Dr Fong has served as a director and chairman of the West Australian Football Commission and acts as adviser 
and consultant to a number of other companies.  
 
During the past three years, Dr Fong has not held a directorship in any other listed companies. 
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Mr Leigh Ryan – BSc Geology, MAIG 
Managing Director (Appointed 23 September 2014) 
 
Mr Ryan is a highly qualified geologist with 27 years of experience in the exploration and resources industry, 
specifically in project management and executive management throughout Australia and Africa. He has been 
involved in the targeting, evaluation, discovery and resource definition of numerous gold and base metal 
deposits and has successfully negotiated many purchase option and joint venture agreements. Mr Ryan was 
previously the Managing Director of Boss Resources Limited, and prior to that was employed by Resolute 
Mining Limited as the Group Exploration Manager for Africa and Australia. He has worked extensively in 
Queensland, WA, Tanzania, Burkina Faso, Mali, and Cote d’Ivoire.  On the 2 December 2013 Mr Ryan was 
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. 

During the past three years Mr Ryan has also served as a Director of the following listed companies: 

Company Date appointed Date ceased 

Attila Resources Limited 23 January 2012 21 January 2013 
Boss Resources Limited 4 May 2011 24 July 2013 

 
Mr Jian Hua Sang  
Executive Director (Appointed 5 July 2013) 
 
Mr Sang trained in China and also was the first Chinese postgraduate student studying Economic Geology in 
Western Australia.  He has more than 25 years of international exploration, mining and corporate experience in 
Asia, Australia and Africa.  

Mr Sang has held senior executive positions as the Chief Representative China of several ASX-listed 
companies, Vice President China of Ivanhoe Mines Inc., Director of Minerals China with Hatch Associates, 
General Manager – Commercial Services of Citic Pacific Mining and CEO of an ASX mining company. During 
the past two years, he has played an instrumental role in successfully bringing a significant amount of Chinese 
capital investment to several ASX-listed minerals exploration companies. 

During the past three years Mr Sang has also served as a Director of the following listed companies: 

Company Date appointed Date ceased 

Emergent Resources Limited 17 September 2012 - 
Vector Resources Limited 13 September 2012 28 November 2013 

 
Mr Sang is entitled to a benefit for the provision of corporate advisory services in relation to the Term Sheet 
executed with Eagle Brilliant Holdings Limited (“EBH”). The corporate advisory agreement executed between 
Mr Sang’s consulting entity and the Company entitles Mr Sang to receive, by way of a consulting fee, 5% of any 
amount of direct equity investment in the Company by the TDL Group (or any of its associates). The contract 
was executed at arms length and on commercial terms. 
 
Mr Michael Griffiths – BSc Dip Ed FAusIMM GAICD  
Non-Executive Director (Appointed 5 April 2013; Resigned 23 September 2014) 
 
Mr Griffiths has over 30 years experience in the minerals and energy sector in Australia and Africa. In the role of 
Chief Executive Officer of Sub-Sahara Resources N.L between 1998 and 2009, Mr Griffiths and his team were 
responsible for the discovery of significant gold deposits in both Tanzania and Eritrea. In Australia his 
exploration experience includes the discovery of significant gold resources in the Tanami Desert region of the 
Northern Territory. He also currently serves as a consultant to ASX-listed Chalice Gold Mines Limited. 

During the past three years Mr Griffiths has also served as a Director of the following listed companies: 

Company Date appointed Date ceased 

Tiger Resources Limited (“Tiger”) 7 December 2012 - 
Currie Rose Resources Inc 7 March 2005 - 
Chalice Gold Mines Limited 26 August 2009 21 November 2011 
East Africa Resources Limited 20 November 2013 - 
Mozambi Coal Limited 14 April 2010 30 April 2013 
RMG Limited 6 June 2013 - 
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Ms Jing Wang  
Executive Director (Appointed 1 November 2013; Resigned 23 September 2014) 
 
Ms Wang has a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemistry from Shandong University of China (2001) and gained 
her masters of Accounting from Curtin University (2003). She is a member of CPA Australia and has had 10 
years of commercial and financial experience in the mining industry in China, Australia and Africa. She has 
worked in the areas of marketing, business development, accounting and commercial services for several ASX 
companies and a major Chinese multinational group which were actively involved in exploration and mining of 
gold, nickel and iron ore. 

During the past three years, Ms Wang has not held a directorship in any other listed companies. 
 
Company Secretary (Appointed 3 December 2013) 
 
Mr Kevin Hart – FCA, B Com 
 
Mr Hart is a Partner at Endeavour Corporate Pty Ltd, an advisory firm that specialises in the provision of 
Company Secretarial services to ASX listed entities.  Kevin has over 27 years of professional experience with 
various public companies, mostly in the exploration and mining industry. 
 
Interests in shares and options of the company and related bodies corporate 
 
The following relevant interests in shares and options of the Company were held by the directors or their 
associates as at the date of this report: 
  

Number of fully paid 
ordinary shares* 

Number of listed 
options over 

ordinary shares 

Employee share 
plan rights 

Directors  
Neale Fong 7,611,480 - - 
Leigh Ryan - - 3,000,000 
Jian Hua Sang - - - 

 
No share options were granted to the directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year as 
part of their remuneration. 
 
Listed options 
 
There were no ordinary shares issued by the company during or since the end of the financial year as a result of 
the exercise of an option. 
 
At the date of this report, the Company had no listed options over ordinary shares on issue. 
 
Dividends 
 
No dividends were paid during the year and no recommendation is made as to dividends. 
 
Principal Activity 
 
The principal continuing activity of the Group was exploration for minerals. 
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Review of Operations 
 
Zambian Copper Projects 
 
Exploration continued in Zambia throughout the year with first pass and infill soil sampling, rock chip sampling, 
mapping, completed at the Kabwima, Shikila, Mwongo and Bulala Hill Projects. 18,636 first pass regional and 
infill soil samples were collected across the four project areas. 130 rock chip samples were collected from the 
Mwongo and Bulala Hills projects. 66 pits for 538.5m and 7 trenches totalling 193.5m were excavated by hand 
at the Kabwima, Shikila, and Mwongo Projects (refer to ASX releases dated between 31 October 2013 and 
31 July 2014). 

Six lines of dipole-dipole Induced Polarisation geophysical surveying and 233 line km of ground magnetics was 
completed at the Shikila Project (refer to ASX release dated 31 July 2013). 

122 first pass aircore holes were drilled across the 5.5km x 1.6km >100ppm Kimabwe Prospect Cu-in-soil 
anomaly for a total of 5,269m (refer to ASX release dated 24 September 2014). 

First pass RC drilling was conducted within the Shikila and Bulala Hills projects in order to test for high grade 
copper mineralisation beneath extensive Cu-in-soil anomalism. 26 holes (2,145m) were completed at the Shikila 
Project (refer to ASX release dated 14 October 2013) and 9 holes were drilled at Bulala (1,670m) (refer to ASX 
release dated 24 September 2014). 

A JORC 2004 compliant maiden inferred copper resource estimate of 18.6Mt at 0.52% Cu containing 96,000 
tonnes of copper (0.3% Cu cut-off) was announced for the Wangolo Deposit (refer to ASX release dated 
20 August 2013). 
 
Australian Projects 
 
Halloween West Joint Venture (Cu-Au, 37% CYS)  
During the year, joint venture partner Talisman Mining Ltd (ASX: TLM) completed soil sampling and geological 
mapping at the Wizard and Malachite Prospects (refer to the Talisman Mining Limited March 2014 Quarterly 
Activities Report as announced to the ASX on 30 April 2014). 

On the 20th December 2013 Talisman announced the signing of a Letter Agreement to permit Sandfire to farm-
in to its interests in the Springfield, Halloween and Halloween West Projects. Sandfire can earn up to 70% of 
Talisman’s interest in the Projects, by spending a minimum of $15M on exploration over 5½ years. Chrysalis 
welcomes the new JV partner and hopes for a new generation of discoveries using Sandfire’s extensive 
geological knowledge (gained from the discovery and development of DeGrussa) and Sandfire’s exploration 
funding capability. 

West Angelas Project (Fe) 
No field work was completed on this project during the year. On the 8th August Chrysalis announced the signing 
of a legally binding agreement with FMG Pilbara Pty Ltd (“Fortescue”) whereby Chrysalis grant Fortescue 
exclusive exploration access to, and an option to purchase, the West Angelas Project for a consideration of 
$100,000 at Commencement; and if not terminated beforehand, $100,000 on the first anniversary of the 
Commencement Date; and if not terminated beforehand, the sum of $100,000 on the second anniversary of the 
Commencement Date. Fortescue must pay these amounts even if Fortescue has exercised the purchase option 
prior to the due dates. If Fortescue exercises the purchase option, Fortescue agrees to pay Chrysalis a Royalty. 
Fortescue will be responsible for managing, administering and keeping the Tenements in good standing 
throughout the exclusive licence period. 

Gregory Range (Cu, base metals, U) 
During the year drilling details and assay results from 157 historic drill holes and all available historic surface 
geochemistry were compiled and data entered into a database (refer to ASX release 28 May 2014). Evaluation 
of the data has been completed and the company is actively seeking Joint Venture partners for this project in 
order to continue its focus on copper exploration in Zambia. 

Pioneer Project (Au) 
No field work was completed on this project during the financial year. 

Horseshoe South (Cu/Au) 
No work was completed on the Horseshoe South Project during the year and all tenements including E52/2523, 
E52/2524 and P52/13632 were surrendered. 
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Corporate 
 
Pursuant to the shareholder approval given at the General Meeting on 14 October 2013, CYS issued 
23,575,427 fully paid ordinary shares valued at 6 cents per share to Eagle Brilliant Holdings Limited (“EBH”) on 
1 November 2013. The shares were placed under a voluntary 12-month escrow from the date of issue. On 10 
January 2014, subsequent to the same General Meeting, unissued shares of $510,872 (8,514,538 ordinary fully 
paid shares) were issued to Eagle Brilliant Holdings Limited (2,128,635 shares), and Tiger Resources Limited 
(6,385,903 shares), in accordance with shareholder approvals. 
 
Financial 
 
At 30 June 2014, the Company had cash reserves of $694,497 (2013: $456,885).  Capitalised exploration and 
evaluation expenditure is $3,772,954 (2013: $3,304,788) which included incurred expenditure of $1,448,713 
(2013: $1,841,713).  The net loss for the year was $2,788,971 (2013: $3,905,006) which included Zambian 
costs of $819,014 (2013: $628,178) which supports the delivery of the exploration program in Zambia. 
 
In the six months to June 2014 there has been a focus on reducing costs and the net loss for the half-year to 
June 2014 after adjusting for impairments is $932,768 against the December 2013 half-year of $1,259,769 after 
adjusting for impairments. 
 
Significant changes in the state of affairs 
 
In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that 
occurred during the financial year not otherwise disclosed in this report or in the financial report. 
 
Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year 

There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen after balance date that has significantly affected, 
or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 
the Group in future financial years, other than those detailed below: 

• On 8 July 2014 the Company announced a fully underwritten Non-Renounceable Entitlement Issue.  The 
offer gave existing eligible shareholders the opportunity to subscribe for 1 new share for every 2 shares 
held in the capital of the Company on 15 July 2014.  The offer comprised up to 114,494,709 new fully paid 
ordinary shares at 1 cent per new share to raise up to $1,144,947 before costs. 

- On 27 August 2014 the Company provided notice of shortfall of 88,793,752 ordinary fully paid shares at 
1 cent, in accordance with the underwriting agreement with Adrian Paul. 

- On 2 September 2014 26,200,957 ordinary shares were allotted at 1 cent pursuant to the offer 
document released on the 18 July 2014. 

- On 15 September 2014 the Company advised of the completion by the underwriter of the entitlement 
issue by the placement of the remaining 88,293,752 shortfall shares, amounting to $882,937.52. 

• On 8 September 2014 the Company announced an exclusive licence and option agreement with Fortescue 
Metals Group for the West Angelas Project Tenements, for a consideration of $100,000 at 
Commencement; and if not terminated beforehand, $100,000 on the first anniversary of the 
Commencement Date. 

 
Likely developments and expected results 

The Group will continue to pursue its principal activity of exploration for minerals, particularly in respect of the 
Projects as outlined in the Company Overview.  
 
Environmental legislation 

The Group’s exploration activities are subject to environmental regulations under both Commonwealth of 
Australia and Western Australian State legislation as well as Zambian Government legislation. 

The Board believes the Group has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental 
requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the Group 
during 2014 and up until the date of this report. 
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Remuneration Report 

This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for key management personnel of the Company 
and its controlled entities for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The information provided in this 
remuneration report has been audited as required by Section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001. 

The remuneration report details remuneration arrangements for key management personnel (“KMP”) who are 
defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major 
activities of the Company and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether 
executive or otherwise) of the Company. 
 
Key Management Personnel 

Directors 

Dr Neale Fong Non-Executive Chairman  

Mr Michael Griffiths¹ Non-Executive Director  Appointed 5 April 2013 

Mr Jian Hua Sang² Non-Executive Director Appointed 5 July 2013 

Ms Jing Wang Executive Director Appointed 1 November 2013 

Mr Trevor Benson Non-Executive Director  Resigned 29 November 2013 

Mr Grant Kidner Executive Director Resigned 29 November 2013 

Mr Bradley Marwood Non-Executive Director  Resigned 29 July 2013 

Mr Adrian Paul Non-Executive Director Resigned 29 November 2013 

1. Mr Michael Griffiths was appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Bradley Marwood on 5 April 2013 and subsequently 
appointed as Non-Executive director on 26 July 2013. 

2. Mr Jian Hua Sang was appointed as Executive Director on 5 July 2013 and Interim Chief Executive Officer on 
5 August 2013.  On the 2 December 2013 Mr Sang resigned as Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer 
and remained as a Non-Executive Director. 

Executives 

Mr Leigh Ryan Chief Executive Officer Appointed 2 December 2013 

Mr Kevin Hart Company Secretary Appointed 3 December 2013 

Mr Patrick Soh Chief Financial Officer Appointed 29 November 2013 

Mr John Noakes Director (Sedgwick 
Resources Limited)  

 

Mr Christopher Simasiku Director / Company 
Secretary (Sedgwick 
Resources Limited) 

 

Ms Melanie Cotterell Company Secretary Resigned 2 December 2013 

Mr Jeremy Hawksworth Exploration Manager  Resigned 31 January 2014  

 
Details of KMP remuneration are set out under the following main headings: 
 
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
B Details of remuneration including share-based compensation remuneration 
C Employment contracts of key management personnel 
D Remuneration of key management personnel 
E Shareholdings of key management personnel 
F Option holdings of key management personnel 
G Transactions with related parties of key management personnel 
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A. Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
 
The objective of the Company’s reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and 
appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aims to align reward with the creation of value for 
shareholders. The Board ensures that employee reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward 
governance practices: 
 
 competitiveness and reasonableness 
 acceptability to shareholders 
 performance incentives 
 transparency 
  capital management 
 
The framework provides a mix of fixed fee, consultancy agreement based remuneration, and share-based 
incentives.   
 
Company performance and link to remuneration 
 
Mr Ryan has been granted 3,000,000 performance shares of which 2,000,000 of these relate to market 
performance as detailed in the performance rights holdings table. 
 
Below is a table showing the Group’s performance and EPS over the last 4 financial years.  

 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 

Financial year profit / (loss) - $ (2,417,426) (1,207,470) (3,905,006) (2,788,971) 

EPS / (Loss per share) - cents (5.78) (2.13) (2.90) (1.29) 

Share price - cents 12 8 5.5 1.5 

 
B. Details of remuneration  
 

Remuneration structure 

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive 
remuneration is separate and distinct. 

 
Non-executive directors 
 
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract 
and retain directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders. 
 
The ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined 
from time to time by a general meeting. The latest determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 20 
November 2009 when shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of $300,000 per year as a base 
salary. 
 
The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is 
apportioned amongst directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers advice from external shareholders as 
well as the fees paid to non-executive directors of comparable companies when undertaking the annual review 
process. 
 
Each director receives a fee for being a director of the Company. The remuneration of non-executive directors 
for the year ended 30 June 2014 is detailed in section D of this report. 
 
Employee share plan 
 
Non-executive directors are encouraged by the Board to hold shares in the Company (purchased on market and 
in accordance with the Company’s approved policies to ensure there is no insider trading).  It is considered 
good governance for directors of a company to have a stake in that company. The non-executive directors of 
the Company may also participate in the share and option plans as described in this report. 
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The objective of the Chrysalis Employee Share Plan is to ensure that the Company has appropriate 
mechanisms in place to continue to attract and retain the services of suitable directors, consultants and 
employees. The plans provide an incentive for participants to participate in the future growth of the Company 
and, upon becoming shareholders in the Company, to participate in the Company’s profits and development. 
There are no performance criteria attached to shares given the Company’s projects are currently within an 
exploration phase. 
 
The key features of the schemes are set out below. 
 
Executive director remuneration 
 
The Company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position 
and responsibilities within the Company and so as to: 

 reward executives for Company, business team and individual performance; 

 align the interests of executives with those of shareholders; and 

 ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards. 
 
Remuneration consists of fixed annual remuneration and variable remuneration (comprising short-term and 
long-term incentive schemes). 
 
Fixed annual remuneration 
 
Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Board of directors. The process consists of a review of relevant 
comparative remuneration in the market and internally and, where appropriate external advice on policies and 
practices. The Board of directors has access to external and independent advice where necessary. 
 
Variable annual remuneration 
 
Short-term incentives 
 
The Performance Rights issued to Mr Ryan include rights that will vest upon completion of 12 months service.. 
 
Long-term incentives 
 
Retirement allowances for directors 
 
Apart from superannuation payments paid on base director fees there are no retirement allowances for 
directors.   
 
Employee share plan 
 
To ensure that the Company has appropriate mechanisms in place to continue to attract and retain the services 
of suitable directors, consultants and employees, the Company established an Employee Share Plan (the 
“Plan”), which was approved by the Shareholders on 20 November 2009 at the Company’s Annual General 
Meeting. The Plan was not renewed at the Company’s 2012 Annual General Meeting and as such should the 
Company issue shares to directors, consultants and employees under the Plan, the issue will impact the 
Company’s 15% placement capacity under ASX listing rule 7.1. 

The number of Ordinary Shares that may be offered to a Participant is entirely within the discretion of the Board. 
The Company does not intend to offer more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company under the Plan. 

The Board’s policy is to remunerate directors at market rates for time, commitment and responsibilities. The 
board determines payments to the directors and reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, 
duties and accountability. During the year no independent external advice was utilised, but it is sought when 
required. The maximum aggregate amount of directors’ fees that can be paid is subject to approval by 
shareholders in general meeting, from time to time. Fees for non-executive directors are not linked to the 
performance of the Company. However, to align directors’ interests with shareholders’ interests, the directors 
are encouraged to hold securities in the Company. 
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The Company’s aim is to remunerate at a level that will attract and retain high-calibre directors and employees. 
Company officers and directors are remunerated to a level consistent with the size of the company. All 
remuneration paid to directors and executives is valued at the cost to the Company and expensed. 

Participants of the Plan are determined by the Board and can be employees and directors of, or consultants to, 
the Company or a controlled entity. The Board considers length of service, seniority, responsibilities, potential 
contribution and any other relevant matters in determining eligibility of potential participants. 

The issue price for the shares issued under the Plan are not less than the weighted average share price for the 
last five trading days immediately preceding the offer to the participant.   

A participant who is invited to subscribe for shares under the Plan may also be invited to apply for a loan up to 
the amount payable in respect of the shares accepted by the participant. These loans are to be made on the 
following terms: 

 Applied directly against the issue price of the shares to be acquired under the Plan; 
 For a term to be determined by the Board; 
 Repayable to the extent of the lesser of the issue price of the relevant shares issued, less any cash 

dividends applied against the outstanding principal; and the last market sale price of the shares on the date 
of repayment of the loan; 

 The loan must be repaid in full prior to expiry of the loan; and 
 The Company will have a lien over the shares in respect of which a loan is outstanding. 
 
The market value of the option implicit in the share issued under the Plan (funded by way of a loan on the 
conditions noted above), measured using the Black and Scholes option pricing model, is recognised in the 
financial statements as an equity benefit reserve and as employee benefit costs in the period over which the 
shares vest. 
 
 
The following Employee Plan Shares were issued by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2014. 

 Grant Date 

 
Number 
Granted 

 
Vesting date 

 
Value at grant 
date (cents) 

 
Expiry date 

 
 

Exercisable 
2014 
Key Management Personnel 

Mr Leigh Ryan 1 6-Dec-2013 1,000,000 16-Sep-2014 4.5 N/A Nil 

Mr Leigh Ryan 2 6-Dec-2013 1,000,000 Refer 2 below 3.2 N/A Nil 

Mr Leigh Ryan 3 6-Dec-2013 1,000,000 Refer 3 below 2.3 N/A Nil 
Notes: 
1. Plan shares will vest upon the employee completing 12 month’s service in the role of Chief Executive Officer of the Company. 
2. Plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or greater than $30 million. 
3. Plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or greater than $50 million. 
 
No ordinary shares in the Company were provided as a result of the exercise of remuneration options during the 
year. 
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C. Employment contracts of key management personnel 
 
Agreements with Directors 

The employment arrangements of the directors are not formalised in a contract of employment.  
 
Agreements with Executives 

The employment arrangements of executives formalised in a contract of employment are listed below: 
 
Chief Executive Officer 

On 10 December 2014 the Company announced the appointment of Mr Leigh Ryan as Chief Executive 
Officer effective from the 2 December 2014. 

An agreement executed on the 6 December 2014 does not have a fixed contract period. It requires that: 

i) the Company may terminate the employment contract at any time by giving three months notice; or 

ii) Mr Ryan may terminate the employment contract at any time by providing the Company with three 
months notice. 

iii) Fixed remuneration in the form of a base salary at $220,000 plus superannuation. 

iv) Employee Share Plan Participation 

a. 1,000,000 plan shares vesting on completion of 12 month’s service in the role of Chief Executive 
Officer. 

b. 1,000,000 plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or 
greater than $30,000,000. 

c. 1,000,000 plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or 
greater than $50,000,000. 

 
Contracted key management personnel are engaged on standard commercial terms. 
 
D Remuneration of key management personnel 

Key management personnel remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 

 
 

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

Other 
long-term 
benefits 

 
Equity   

 

Salary & 
Fees 

$ 
Bonuses 

$ 
Other 

$ 

Super-
annuation 

$ 

Long-
service 
leave 

$ 

Share 
Options/ 

rights 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Perform-
ance 

Related 
% 

2014 
Directors         

Dr Neale Fong 82,500 - - 7,631 - - 90,131 - 

Mr Michael Griffiths1 48,316 - - 4,469 - - 52,785 - 

Mr Jian Hua Sang2 133,765 - 6,386 2,698 - - 142,849 - 

Ms Jing Wang3 62,917 - 9,118 5,820 - - 77,855 - 

Mr Trevor Benson4 21,331 - - 1,973 - - 23,304 - 

Mr Grant Kidner5 41,667 - - 3,854 - - 45,521 - 

Mr Bradley Marwood6 50,328 - - - - - 50,328 - 

Mr Adrian Paul7 22,917 - - 2,120 - - 25,037 - 

Key Management 
Personnel         

Mr Leigh Ryan8 188,923 - - 11,740 - 40,254 240,917 16.7% 

Mr Kevin Hart9 24,524 - - - - - 24,524 - 

Mr Patrick Soh10 39,500 - - - - - 39,500 - 

Mr John Noakes - - - - - - - - 

Mr Christopher Simasiku 62,052 - 7,462 - - - 69,514 - 

Ms Melanie Cotterell11 12,500 - - 1,156 - - 13,656 - 

Mr Jeremy Hawksworth12 154,493 - - - - - 154,493 - 
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Short-term employee benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

Other 
long-term 
benefits 

 
Equity   

 

Salary & 
Fees 

$ 
Bonuses 

$ 
Other 

$ 

Super-
annuation 

$ 

Long-
service 
leave 

$ 

Share 
Options/ 

rights 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Perform-
ance 

Related 
% 

2013 
Directors         

Dr Neale Fong 100,000 - - 9,000 - - 109,000 - 

Mr Michael Griffiths1 - - - - - - - - 

Mr Jian Hua Sang2 - - - - - - - - 

Mr Trevor Benson4 42,319 - - 3809 - - 46,128 - 

Mr Grant Kidner5 100,000 - - 9,000 - - 109,000 - 

Mr Bradley Marwood6 - - - - - - - - 

Mr Adrian Paul7 55,000 - - 4,950 - - 59,950 - 

Key Management 
Personnel         

Mr John Noakes 244,500 - - - - - 244,500 - 

Mr Christopher Simasiku 64,007 - 13,072 - - - 77,079 - 

Ms Melanie Cotterell11 22,917 - - 2,063 - - 24,980 - 

Mr Jeremy Hawksworth12 105,122 - - - - - 105,122 - 
Notes: 
1. Appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Bradley Marwood on 5 April 2013 and subsequently appointed as Non-Executive director on 

26 July 2013. 
2. Appointed as Executive Director on 5 July 2013 and Interim Chief Executive Officer on 5 August 2013.  On the 2 December 2013 

Mr Jian Hua Sang resigned as Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer and remained as a Non-Executive Director. 
3. Appointed as Executive Director from 1 November 2013 
4. Resigned 29 November 2013 
5. Resigned 29 November 2013 
6. Resigned 29 July 2013 
7. Resigned 29 November 2013 
8. Appointed as Chief Executive Officer from 2 December 2013 
9. Appointed as Company Secretary from 3 December 2013 
10. Appointed as contracted Chief Financial Officer 29 November 2013 
11. Resigned as Company Secretary 2 December 2013 
12. Resigned 31 January 2014 
 
E Shareholdings of key management personnel 

 

Balance at 
beginning of 

period 
Granted as 

remuneration 
On exercise 
of options 

On market 
acquisitions / 

(disposals) 
Balance at 

end of period 
2014 
Directors      

Dr Neale Fong 6,934,320 - - - 6,934,320 

Mr Michael Griffiths - - - - - 

Mr Jian Hua Sang 1 - - - - - 

Ms Jing Wang 1 - - - - - 

Mr Trevor Benson 6,750,000 - - - 2 6,750,000 

Mr Grant Kidner 6,447,104 - - - 2 6,447,104 

Mr Bradley Marwood - - - - - 

Mr Adrian Paul 12,481,820 - - - 2 12,481,820 

      

Key Management Personnel      

Mr Leigh Ryan 1 - - - - - 

Mr Kevin Hart 1 - - - - - 

Mr Patrick Soh 1 - - - - - 

Mr John Noakes 1,425,000 - - (758,813) 666,187 

Mr Christopher Simasiku - - - - - 

Ms Melanie Cotterell 360,000 - - - 2 360,000 

Mr Jeremy Hawksworth - - - - - 

 34,398,244 - - (758,813) 33,639,431 
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Balance at 
beginning of 

period 
Granted as 

remuneration 
On exercise 
of options 

On market 
acquisitions / 

(disposals) 
Balance at 

end of period 
2013 
Directors      

Dr Neale Fong 3,852,400 - - 3,081,920 6,934,320 

Mr Grant Kidner 3,581,724 - - 2,865,380 6,447,104 

Mr Jian Hua Sang - - - - - 

Mr Adrian Paul 6,934,344 - - 5,547,476 12,481,820 

Mr Bradley Marwood - - - - - 

Mr Michael Griffiths - - - - - 

Mr Trevor Benson 3,750,000 - - 3,000,000 6,750,000 

      

Key Management Personnel      

Ms Melanie Cotterell 200,000 - - 160,000 360,000 

Mr Jeremy Hawksworth - - - - - 

Mr John Noakes 1,500,000 - - (75,000) 1,425,000 

Mr Christopher Simasiku - - - - - 

 19,818,468 - - 14,579,776 34,398,244 
Notes: 
1. Represents shares held at date of appointment as Director or key management personnel. 
2. Represents shares held at date of resignation as Director or key management personnel. 
 
F Option holdings of key management personnel 

No options were issued during the year ended 30 June 2014, nor were there any other movements since 2013. 

 

Balance at 
beginning of 

period 
Granted as 

remuneration 
Options 
expired 

On market 
acquisitions 

Balance at end 
of period Exercisable 

2013 
Directors 

Dr Neale Fong 500,000 - (500,000) - - - 

Mr Grant Kidner 2,190,000  (2,190,000) - - - 

Mr Adrian Paul 2,500,001 - (2,500,001) - - - 

Key Management Personnel 

Ms Melanie Cotterell 141,830 - (141,830) - - - 

 5,331,831 - (5,331,831) - - - 
Note: No other Directors or key management personnel had option holdings in the Company 
 
G Transactions with related parties of key management personnel 
 
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties for the 
relevant financial year: 
 

  
Income from 

Related Parties 
Expenditure to 
Related Parties 

Amounts Owed 
by Related 

parties at year 
end 

Amounts Owed 
to Related 

parties at year 
end 

  $ $ $ $ 
      

Equiti partners 1 2014 - 138,429 - - 

 2013 - 154,718 - 30,430 

Craigstone Pty Ltd 2 2014 - 64,906 - - 

 2013 - - - 78,000 

Australasian Minerals &  
Trading Pty Ltd 3 

2013 
2014 - - - - 

 2013 - 2,071 - - 

Ruby Hall Pty Ltd 4 2014 - - - - 

 2013 - 1,215 - - 

Yangtze Trust 5 2014 - 165,356 - - 

 2013 - - - - 
Notes: 
1. Mr G Kidner, an Executive director, is a director of Equiti Partners. During the financial year, Equiti Partners received fees for 

accounting, secretarial, executive consultancy fees, administration services and reimbursement of car parking facilities from the 
Company. 



 
DIRECTORS REPORT (continued) 
 

 
14 

2. Mr J Noakes, a director of Sedgwick Resources Limited, is a director of Craigstone Pty Ltd. During the financial year, Mr Noakes 
received geological exploration consultancy fees from the Company. 

3. Australasian Minerals & Trading Pty Ltd is the trustee for the Sedgwick Resources Unit Trust of which Mr J Noakes is a beneficiary. 
4. Mr A Paul, a Non-Executive director, is a director of Ruby Hall Pty Ltd. During the prior financial year, Ruby Hall Pty Ltd lent $195,000 

via an unsecured loan to the Company. The loan was repaid during September 2012 with interest of $1,215 calculated at 8% per 
annum in accordance with the terms of contract with the Company. 

5. Mr Jian Hua Sang, a Non-Executive directors is a beneficiary of Yangtze Trust.  During the financial year Mr Sang received a 
commission on funds raised from EBH. 

 
For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has not made any allowance for doubtful debts relating to amounts 
owed by related parties due to solid payment history (2012: $nil). An impairment assessment is undertaken 
each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates to determine whether there is objective evidence that a related party receivable is impaired. 
When such objective evidence exists, the Group recognises an allowance for the impairment loss. 
 
Directors’ Meetings 

The Board has not established separate committees.  The Board performs the roles of the Committees. 

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and 
the number of meetings attended by each director was as follows: 

 Directors’ 
Meetings 

Audit 
Committee 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Nomination 
committee 

Number of meetings held: 11 2 1 2 
     

Number of meetings attended:     

Dr Neale Fong 11 2 1 2 

Mr Michael Griffiths1 11 2 1 2 

Mr Jian Hua Sang2 10 2 1 2 

Ms Jing Wang3 6 - - - 

Mr Trevor Benson4 5 2 1 2 

Mr Grant Kidner5 4 2 1 2 

Mr Bradley Marwood6 - - - - 

Mr Adrian Paul7 3 2 1 1 

Notes: 

1. Appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Bradley Marwood on 5 April 2013 and subsequently appointed as Non-Executive 
director on 26 July 2013. 

2. Appointed as Executive Director on 5 July 2013 and Interim Chief Executive Officer on 5 August 2013.  On the 
2 December 2013 Mr Jian Hua Sang resigned as Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer and remained 
as a Non-Executive Director. 

3. Appointed as Executive Director from 1 November 2013 
4. Resigned 29 November 2013 
5. Resigned 29 November 2013 
6. Resigned 29 July 2013 
7. Resigned 29 November 2013 
 
Indemnification and insurance of Directors and Officers 
 
The Company has agreed to indemnify all the directors of the Company for any liabilities to another person 
(other than the Company or related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors of the 
Company, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. 
 
During the financial year the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors and officers 
of the company and its controlled entities against any liability incurred in the course of their duties to the extent 
permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the 
liability and the amount of the premium. 
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Proceedings on behalf of the company  
 
No person has applied for leave to the Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company 
for all or any part of those proceedings. The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 
 
Auditor Independence and Non-Audit Services  
 
Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 requires our auditors, HLB Mann Judd, to provide the directors of 
the Company with an Independence Declaration in relation to the audit of the annual report. This Independence 
Declaration is set out on page 16 and forms part of this Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Non-Audit Services  
 
The Company’s auditors provided tax compliance and IER services during the financial year ended 
30 June 2014. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor did not 
compromise the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 
 
 

 
 
Dr Neale Fong 
Non-Executive Chairman 
Perth, 30 September 2014 
 
 
 
Competent Person’s Statement 
 
The information in this report that relates to exploration results is based on information compiled by Mr Leigh Ryan, CEO 
employed by Chrysalis, who is a Member of the Australian Institute of Geoscientists (MAIG). Mr Ryan has sufficient 
experience relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity he is 
undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the “Australasian Code for Reporting of 
Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves”. Mr Ryan consents to the inclusion in the report of the matters 
based on information in the form and context in which it appears. Mr Ryan participates in the Company’s Employee Share 
Plan. 
 
JORC Code Compliant Public Reports 
 
The Company advises that this Annual Report contains summaries of Exploration Results and Mineral Resources as defined 
in the 2012 Edition of the ‘Australian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’ 
(JORC Code). The JORC compliant Public Reports released to the ASX declaring the exploration results or JORC resources 
referred to can be viewed on both the ASX and the Company websites. 
 
The Information in this news release that relates to mineral resources at Wangolo is based on resource estimates compiled 
by Mr Michael Andrew, who is a member of the Australian Institute of Geoscientists and The Australasian Institute of Mining 
and Metallurgy (AusIMM). Mr Andrew is a former employee of Optiro Pty Ltd. Mr Andrew has sufficient experience which is 
relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to 
qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the “Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, 
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves” (the “JORC Code”) and to qualify as a “Qualified Person” under National Instrument 
43-101 – Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects (“NI 43-101”). Mr Andrew consents to the inclusion in this news 
release of the matters based on their information in the form and context in which it appears. 
 
The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in 
the original market announcement and, in the case of estimates of Mineral Resources that all material assumptions and 
technical parameters underpinning the estimate in the relevant market announcement continue to apply and have not 
materially changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are 
presented have not materially modified from the original market announcement. 
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  Consolidated 

 
 Note 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
   
Revenue 2 43,943 32,895 
    
Accounting fees  (135,250) (114,759) 
Audit fees  (35,258) (63,398) 
Depreciation and amortisation  (65,749) (38,212) 
Directors’ remuneration  (449,590) (370,206) 
Employee benefits expense  (689,617) (433,437) 
Stock exchange and registry fees  (44,968) (35,258) 
Corporate social responsibility  (28,740) (15,056) 
Tenement management fees  (6,304) (14,265) 
Costs associated with Zambian Copper Project  (26,159) (9,426) 
Exploration costs reimbursed / (written off)  2,002 (299,505) 
Impairment of exploration costs 8 (596,434) (1,927,801) 
Other expenses 2 (756,847) (616,578) 
   
Loss before income tax expense  (2,788,971) (3,905,006)
Income tax expense 3 - -
 
Net loss for the year 

  
(2,788,971) 

 
(3,905,006)

   
Other comprehensive income / (loss)   
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss   
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations  (396,731) 118,163
    
Total comprehensive loss for the year  (3,185,702) (3,786,843)
    
Earnings per share   
Basic loss per share (cents) 5 (1.29) (2.90)
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 5 (1.29) (2.90)
   

 
The accompanying notes form part of this financial statement. 
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  Consolidated 

 
 Note 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
   
Current Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 6 694,497 456,885
Trade and other receivables 7 79,288 2,425,042
   
Total Current Assets  773,785 2,881,927
   
Non-Current Assets   
Property, plant and equipment 10 217,133 194,656
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 8 3,772,954 3,304,788
   
Total Non-Current Assets  3,990,087 3,499,444
   
Total Assets  4,763,872 6,381,371
   
   
Current Liabilities   
Trade and other payables 9 218,060 406,936
   
Total Current Liabilities  218,060 406,936
   
Total Liabilities  218,060 406,936
   
Net Assets  4,545,812 5,974,435
   
Equity   
Ordinary share capital 11 16,211,680 14,019,803
Reserves 12 204,342 1,035,871
Accumulated losses 12 (11,870,210) (9,081,239)
   
Total Equity  4,545,812 5,974,435
   

 
The accompanying notes form part of this financial statement. 
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Consolidated 

Ordinary 
share 
capital 

$ 
Reserves 

$ 

Accumulated 
Losses 

$ 
Total 

$ 
  
1 July 2012 
 

7,715,081 917,708 (5,176,233) 3,456,556

Total comprehensive loss for the year - 118,163 (3,905,006) (3,786,843)
  
Shares issued under non-renounceable 
rights issue 2,501,473 - - 2,501,473
Shares issued as consideration for Zambian 
Project 1,607,320 - - 1,607,320
Shares issued to consultants 2,362,793 - - 2,362,793
Share and option issue expense (166,864) - - (166,864)
  
Balance at 30 June 2013 14,019,803 1,035,871 (9,081,239) 5,974,435
   
  
1 July 2013 
 

14,019,803 1,035,871 (9,081,239) 5,974,435

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (396,731) (2,788,971) (3,185,702)
  
Shares issued  1,925,398 - - 1,925,398
Share issue expense (325,573) - - (325,573)
Share plan shares 592,052 (475,052) - 117,000
Recognition of share-based payments - 40,254 - 40,254
  
Balance at 30 June 2014 16,211,680 204,342 (11,870,210) 4,545,812
   

 
The accompanying notes form part of this financial statement. 
 
 



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 
 

 
20 

 
  Consolidated 

 
 Note 2014 

$ 
 

2013 
$ 
 

Cash flows from operating activities   
Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,787,420) (1,165,616)
Exploration overheads  (630,641) (344,639)
Interest received  43,496 32,840
GST received  116,618 98,306
Interest paid  (164) (5,021)
Net cash (used in) operating activities 6(ii) (2,258,111) (1,384,130)
   
Cash flows from investing activities   
Purchase of plant and equipment  (127,072) (192,104)
Settlement of Zambian Copper Project  - (300,000)
Exploration & evaluation expenditure  (1,448,713) (1,902,621)
Net cash (used in) investing activities  (1,575,785) (2,394,725)
   
Cash flows from financing activities   
Proceeds from unsecured loans  - 320,000
Repayment of unsecured loans   - (320,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares   4,405,191 4,108,793
Payment of capital raising costs  (325,573) (170,457)
Net cash provided by financing activities  4,079,618 3,938,336
   
Net increase in cash held  245,722 159,481
   
Cash at beginning of the financial year  456,885 294,444

Effect of exchange fluctuations on cash held  (8,110) 2,960

   
Cash at end of the financial year 6 (i) 694,497 456,885
   

 
The accompanying notes form part of this financial statement. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
(a) Basis of Preparation 
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations and complies with other 
requirements of the law.  

The accounting policies detailed below have been consistently applied to all of the years presented unless 
otherwise stated.  The financial statements are for the consolidated entity of Chrysalis Resources Limited and its 
subsidiaries. 

The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis. Cost is based on the fair values of the 
consideration given in exchange for assets. 

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars. The Company is a listed company incorporated in 
Australia and operating in Australia and the Republic of Zambia. The Group’s principal activities are the 
exploration for mineral resources. The Company is a for profit entity. 

Where appropriate prior year disclosures have been reclassified for consistency with current year classifications. 
The re-classification has not impacted the net profit / (loss) for the prior year. 
 
(b) Adoption of new and revised standards 
Standards and Interpretations applicable to 30 June 2014 
In the year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors have reviewed all the new and revised standards and 
interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the current 
annual reporting period. 

As a result of this review, the directors have determined that there is no material impact of the new and revised 
Standards and Interpretations on the Company and, therefore, no material change is necessary to Group 
accounting policies. 

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted  
The Directors have also reviewed all new Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet 
effective for the year ended 30 June 2014. As a result of this review the directors have determined that there is 
no material impact, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on the Group and, therefore, no 
change is necessary to Group accounting policies. 
 
(c) Statement of Compliance 
The financial report was authorised for issue on the 30 September 2014. 

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“AIFRS”). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial 
information, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
(d) Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Chrysalis 
Resources Limited (“Company”) as at 30 June 2014 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. 
Chrysalis Resources Limited and its subsidiaries are referred to in this financial report as the Group or 
consolidated entity.  

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, 
using consistent accounting policies. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, income and 
expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Control exists where the Company 
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are 
considered when assessing when the Group controls another entity. 
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Unrealised gains or transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the 
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the 
Group and are presented separately in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and 
within equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Losses are attributed to the non-controlling 
interests even if that results in a deficit balance. 

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions 
with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying 
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any 
difference between the amount of the adjustment to the non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or 
received is recognised within equity attributable to owners of Chrysalis Resources Limited. 

When the Group ceases to have control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is 
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the 
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associated, 
joint controlled entity or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to 
profit or loss.  
 
(e) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The application of accounting policies requires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if it affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Share-based payment transactions: 
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and consultants by reference to the 
fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value of options and share 
plan shares with limited recourse loans is determined by using a Black and Scholes model, using the 
assumptions detailed in Note 13. 

Exploration and evaluation costs carried forward 
The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may 
lead to impairment of assets.  Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of 
key estimates. The ultimate recoupment of value is dependent on the successful development and commercial 
exploitation or sale of the respective areas. 

The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation costs carried forward has been reviewed 
by the directors and an impairment expense of $596,434 has been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income in relation to the Horseshoe, West Angelas, Gregory Range and Pioneer 
projects. Please refer to Note 8 for more details. 
 
(f) Foreign currency translation 
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Company and its Australian controlled entity is Australian 
dollars (A$). Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial 
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. 

The functional currency of the foreign operations is Zambian Kwacha (KWA). 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange 
rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date. 

All exchange differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to profit or loss with the exception of 
differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 
 

 
23 

These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in 
profit or loss. 

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in equity. 

As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into their presentation 
currency of the Group at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date and their Statements of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income are translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the year. 

The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. 

On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular 
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
(g) Going Concern 
The Group incurred an operating loss after income tax of $2,788,971 for the year ended 30 June 14, whilst cash 
balances as at 30 June 2014 were $694,497. In addition the net cash outflows from operating and investing 
activities was $3,833,896. On the 8 July  2014 the Company announced a fully underwritten non-renounceable 
entitlement issue.  On the 15 September 2014 the Company issued the remaining shortfall shares to raise a 
total of $1,144,947 before costs. 

As at the date of this report, no firm funding facilities are in place. If there are delays in sourcing equity funding 
for planned activities over the next 12 months, the Company has plans in place to scale back its activities and 
budgeted expenditure until adequate funding is obtained. In the opinion of the Directors, the cash outflows 
relating to the scaled back activities can be met from the existing cash resources. 

The Directors continue to manage the Group’s activities with due regard to current and future funding 
requirements. On this basis, the Directors believe the financial statements should be prepared on a going 
concern basis. 
 
(h) Segment Reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of Chrysalis 
Resources Ltd. 

During the financial year, the Group operated in the mineral exploration industry within Australia and Zambia. 
 
(i) Interest income 
Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the financial asset. 
 
(j) Government grants 
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and the group will comply with all the attached conditions. 

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement of financial position over the 
period necessary to match them with the direct costs that they are intended to compensate. 
 
(k) Income Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance date. 

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance date between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except: 

 when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or 

 when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or 
interests in joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it 
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 
 

 
24 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax 
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilised, except: 

 when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business  combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or 

 when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries,  associates or 
interests in joint ventures, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is 
probably that the temporary difference will reverse in the  foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
income tax asset to be utilised. 

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance date. 

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
 
(l) Goods and services tax (“GST”) and Value Added Tax (“VAT”) 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST and VAT except: 

 when the GST or VAT incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case the GST or VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item as applicable; and 

 receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST or VAT included. 

The net amount of GST or VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST or VAT component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority are classified as operating cash flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST or VAT recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority. 
 
(m) Impairment of assets 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate 
of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value in use cannot 
be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are recognised in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired asset unless the asset is carried at re-valued amount (in which case 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease). 
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An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That 
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or 
loss unless the asset is carried at re-valued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation 
increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 
(n) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash comprises cash at bank and on hand. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position. 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 
 
(o) Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are measured on initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for impairment. Trade receivables are generally 
due for settlement within periods ranging from 15 days to 30 days. 

Impairment of trade receivables is continually reviewed and those that are considered to be uncollectible are 
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account is used when there is objective 
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual terms. 
Factors considered by the Group in making this determination include known significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor, review of financial information and significant delinquency in making contractual payments to the 
Group. 

The impairment allowance is set equal to the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Where receivables 
are short-term discounting is not applied in determining the allowance. 

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income within other expenses. When a trade receivable for which an impairment allowance had been 
recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off in the allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
(p) Financial assets 
Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified 
as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, 
or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are 
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly 
attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial 
recognition and, when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end. All 
regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the 
Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace. 

Recognition 
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the 
related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are classified 
as "financial assets at fair value through profit and loss" as they are acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short term. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
these assets are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period in 
which they arise. 
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Fair value 
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are 
applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, 
reference to similar instruments and option pricing models. 

Impairment 
At each reporting date, the directors assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument 
has been impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when the loans 
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 
 
(q) Impairment of financial assets 
The Company assesses at each balance date whether a financial asset or group of assets is impaired. 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at 
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through use of an allowance 
account. The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that 
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit 
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are 
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, to the extent 
that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. 

(ii) Financial assets carried at cost 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that 
is not carried at fair value (because its fair value cannot be reliably measured), or on a derivative asset that is 
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
 
(r) Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the 
parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. 

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any 
impairment losses recognised after the date of revaluation. Depreciation is calculated over the estimated useful 
life of the assets as follows: 
Plant and equipment (tangible) – over 3 to 20 years (diminishing value basis) 
Plant and equipment (intangible) – over 5 to 20 years (straight line basis) 
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
each financial year end. 
 
 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 
 

 
27 

Impairment 
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each balance date, with recoverable 
amount being estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in 
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating units exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then written down to its recoverable amount. For plant 
and equipment, impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income in the cost of sales line item.  

(i) De-recognition and disposal.  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year the asset is derecognised. 
 
(s) Trade and other payables 
Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and 
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Group 
becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.  Trade and 
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months. 
 
(t) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.  Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method.  Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.  In this case, the fee is deferred until 
the draw down occurs.   

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.  Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method.  Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.  In this case, the fee is deferred until 
the draw down occurs.   

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it 
relates. The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible note is determined using a market interest rate for 
an equivalent non-convertible note.  This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until 
extinguished on conversion or maturity of the note.  The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the 
conversion option.  This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects. 

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged, cancelled or expired.  The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has 
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.  Borrowings 
are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
 
(u) Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for 
future operating losses. 

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The 
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expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income net of any reimbursement. 

Provisions are measured at the present value or management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing 
cost. 
 
(v) Employee leave benefits 

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits of annual leave expected to be settled 
within 12 months of the balance date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to 
the balance date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the 
rates paid or payable. 

(ii) Long service leave 
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits where required and 
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the balance date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures, and period of service. Expected future payments are discounted using 
market yields at the balance date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
(w) Share-based payment transactions 

(i) Equity settled transactions: 
The Group provides benefits to employees (including senior executives) of the Group in the form of share-based 
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled 
transactions). There is currently one plan in place to provide these benefits, being the Employee Share Plan 
(ESP). 

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the 
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using the Black Scholes 
model, further details of which are given in Note 13. 

In valuing equity settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions 
linked to the price of the shares of the Company (market conditions) if applicable. 

The cost of the equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over 
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the 
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting period). 

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance date until vesting date 
reflects (i) the extent to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the Group’s best estimate of the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance 
conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of the fair value at grant 
date. The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income charge or credit for a period represents 
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is only 
conditional upon a market condition. 

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms 
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair 
value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at 
the date of modification. 

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any 
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted 
for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled 
and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous 
paragraph. 
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The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of 
earnings per share. 
 
(x) Ordinary share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or 
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable 
to the issue of new shares or options for the acquisition of a new business are not included in the cost of 
acquisition as part of the purchase consideration. 
 
(y) Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit or loss attributable to members of the Company, adjusted to 
exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element. 

Diluted earnings per share are calculated as net profit or loss attributable to members of the Company, adjusted 
for: 
 costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends; 
 the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have 

been recognised as expenses; and 
 other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the 

dilution of potential ordinary shares; divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and 
dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.  

 
(z) Exploration and evaluation expenditure 
Exploration and evaluation expenditures in relation to each separate area of interest, is recognised as an 
exploration and evaluation asset in the year in which they are incurred where the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

(i) the rights to tenure of the area of interest are current; and 

(ii) at least one of the following conditions is also met: 

 the exploration and evaluation expenditures are expected to be recouped through successful 
development and exploitation of the area of interest, or alternatively, by its sale; or 

 exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not, at the reporting date, reached a 
stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence, or otherwise, of economically 
recoverable reserves and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are 
continuing. 

Exploration and evaluation assets are initially measured at cost and include acquisition of rights to explore, 
studies, exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling and associated activities and an allocation of depreciation 
and amortised assets used in exploration and evaluation activities. General and administrative costs are only 
included in the measurement of exploration and evaluation costs where they are related directly to operational 
activities in a particular area of interest. 

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that 
their carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amount and where this is the case an impairment loss is 
recognised. Should a project or area of interest be abandoned, the expenditure will be written off in the period in 
which the decision is made. Where a decision is made to proceed with development, accumulated expenditure 
will be amortised over the life of the reserves associated with the area of interest once mining operations have 
commenced.  

Where a decision has been made to proceed with development in respect of a particular area of interest, the 
relevant exploration and evaluation asset is tested for impairment and the balance is then reclassified to 
development. 
 
(aa) Parent entity financial information 
The financial information for the parent entity, Chrysalis Resources Limited, disclosed in Note 21 has been 
prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements, except as set out below. 

(i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities 
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in the parent entity 
financial statements of Chrysalis Resources Limited.  Dividends received from associates are recognised in 
the parent entity’s profit or loss, rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of these investments. 
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(ii) Share-based payments 
The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings 
in the group is treated as a capital contribution to that subsidiary undertaking.  The fair value of employee 
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as 
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity. 
 
(ab) Interests in joint operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have 
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the 
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in 
relation to its interests a joint operation: 

• Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 
• Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly; 
• Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation; 
• Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and  
• Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation 
in accordance with AASBs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. 

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or 
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction with the other parties to the 
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation. 

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a 
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it resells those 
assets to a third party. 
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2.  REVENUE AND EXPENSES 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
(a)  Revenue   
Bank interest  43,943 32,895 
   
(b)  Expenses   
Travel and accommodation (102,280) (106,872) 
Motor vehicle expenses (52,037) (87,279) 
Professional fees (152,970) (91,540) 
Legal expense (51,397) (41,264) 

 
 
3.  INCOME TAX 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
(a)  Income Tax Expense   
The major components of tax expense are: 
 
The prima facie income tax expense on pre-tax accounting result from continuing 
operations reconciles to the income tax benefit in the financial statements as follows: 
 

  

Accounting loss before tax continuing operations 2,788,971 3,905,006 
   
Income tax benefit @ 30% (2013:30%) 836,691 1,171,502 
Non-deductible expenses 152,741 (20,065) 
Non-assessable income - 7,887 
Other deferred tax assets and tax liabilities not recognised (1,069,452) (1,182,824) 
Difference in tax rate of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 80,020 23,500 
Total income tax expense - - 
  
   
   
   
(b)  Unrecognised Deferred Tax Balances   
The following deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been brought to account: 
 

  

Deferred tax assets comprise:   
 Losses available for offset against future taxable income – revenue 3,555,334 2,522,139 
 Depreciation timing differences 6,292 188 
 Business related costs 121 161 
 Share issue expenses 116,589 52,134 
 Accrued expenses and liabilities 18,580 57,827 
 3,696,916 2,632,449 
   
Deferred tax liabilities comprise:   
 Exploration expenditure capitalised (34,500) (163,352) 
 Accrued interest (69,429) (85) 
 Prepayments (5,505) - 
 (109,434) (163,437) 
   
(c)  Income tax expense not recognised direct in equity during the year:   
Share-issue costs (97,672) (50,059) 
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING 
 
Description of segments and related information 
 
The Group has based its operating segment on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the board of 
directors in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources. 
 
The Group currently does not have production and is only involved in exploration. As a consequence, activities 
in the operating segments are identified by the Board based on the manner in which resources are allocated, 
the nature of the resources provided and the identity of the manager and country of expenditure. Information is 
reviewed on a whole of entity basis. 
 
 Australia Zambia Consolidated
 $ $ $
    
Consolidated   
30 June 2014   
    
Segment Revenue 43,943 - 43,943
    
Segment Results (1,969,957) (819,014) (2,788,971)
    
Segment assets 828,017 3,935,855 4,763,872
    
Segment Liabilities (147,923) (300,834) (448,757)
    
Capitalised expenditure 241,194 1,369,947 1,611,141
  
Included within segment results:  
Depreciation (17,748) (48,001) (65,749)
Interest revenue 43,943 - 43,943
 
Consolidated    
30 June 2013   
    
Segment Revenue 32,895 - 32,895 
    
Segment Results (3,276,828) (628,178) (3,905,006) 
    
Segment assets 3,276,457 3,104,914 6,381,371 
    
Segment Liabilities (301,815) (105,121) (406,936) 
    
Capitalised expenditure 89,615 1,944,202 2,033,817 
    
Included within segment results:    
Depreciation (10,356) (27,856) (38,212) 
Interest revenue 32,895 - 32,895 

 
 
5.  LOSS PER SHARE (EPS) 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Basic loss per share (cents) (1.29) (2.90) 
   
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation 
of basic earnings per share is as follows:   
   
Earnings – Net loss for the year (2,788,971) (3,905,006) 
   
 Number Number 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS 216,111,055 134,426,366 
Diluted loss per share is not disclosed as the result is anti-dilutive.   
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6.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Cash at bank and on hand 191,366 406,164 
Short-term deposits 503,131 50,721 
 694,497 456,885 
   

 
Cash at bank earns interest at floating interest rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 
 
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the 
immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term interest rates. 
 
Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash flows used in operating activities 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Loss for the year (2,788,971) (3,905,006) 
   
Exploration costs written off - 299,505 
Impairment of exploration costs 596,434 1,927,801 
Loss on sale of asset 14,766 - 
Depreciation 65,749 38,212 
Share-based payments 40,254 - 
Foreign exchange 19,574 101,639 
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments & other debtors (39,034) (22,436) 
(Increase) / decrease in accrued interest (447) (55) 
(Increase) / decrease in GST recoverable 22,442 313 
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors (59,622) 14,361 
Increase / (decrease) in other payables (142,330) 161,957 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 13,074 (421) 
Net cash flows (used in) operating activities (2,258,111) (1,384,130) 

 
 
7.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Current   
Debtors 6,624 17,057 
Prepayments 21,245 11,933 
GST receivable 10,532 32,974 
Other 40,887 285 
Receivable under Binding Term Sheet 1 - 2,362,793 
 79,288 2,425,042 

Notes 1: On or around 19 June 2013 the Company entered into a Binding Term Sheet with EBH whereby the Company was 
required to issue that number of fully paid ordinary shares that gives EBH (and its associates) a shareholding in the 
Company equivalent to 25%. 

At 30 June 2013 the Company and EBH had satisfied the conditions precedent in relation to the Initial Placement shares and 
Tiger had elected to exercise their Top-up right under the Tiger Subscription Agreement. The Company recognised the 
receivable due from EBH and Tiger on the Initial Placement shares for $2,362,793 at 30 June 2013. Subsequent to year 
end, the 39,379,890 Initial Placement shares were issued on 5 July 2013. 
 
Due to the nature of the Group’s receivables, an ageing schedule is not presented. 
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8.  EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE 
 
Costs carried forward in respect of areas of interest in the exploration and evaluation phase: 

 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Exploration and evaluation phase – at cost   
Balance at beginning of the year 3,304,788 3,544,166 
Expenditure incurred  1,448,713 1,841,713 
Expenditure reimbursed / (written off) - (299,505) 
Expenditure impaired 1 (596,434) (1,927,801) 
Foreign currency translation  (384,113) 146,215 
Total exploration expenditure 3,772,954 3,304,788 

Notes: 
1. At 30 June 2014 the Company assessed the value of its exploration and evaluation assets. In light of current market 

conditions and considering there are no immediate programs of works currently underway on certain projects, the 
carrying values of the Pioneer, Gregory Range, Horseshoe South, Halloween West (JV) and West Angelas projects 
were impaired.  

2. The recoupment of costs carried forward in relation to areas of interest in the exploration and evaluation phases is 
dependent on the successful development and commercial exploitation or sale of the respective areas. 

 
 
9.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
 Consolidated
 2014 2013 

 $ $ 
Current   
Trade payables  55,515 115,137 
Other payables 162,545 291,799 
 218,060 406,936 

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms. 
 
 
10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 Consolidated 
 Furniture and 

fittings 
Plant and 
equipment Motor vehicle Total 

 $ $ $ $
    
Balance at 1 July 2012 18,113 9,087 - 27,200 
Additions 12,427 67,211 112,466 192,104 
Depreciation charge (5,180) (17,243) (15,789) (38,212) 
Foreign currency differences 882 4,698 7,984 13,564 
Balance at 1 July 2013 26,242 63,753 104,661 194,656 
  
Additions 1,450 160,978 - 162,428
Depreciation charge (4,797) (51,548) (9,404) (65,749)
Disposals (12,649) (45,634) - (58,283)
Transfers - 33,160 (33,160) -
Foreign currency differences (1,329) 20,461 (35,051) (15,919)
Balance at 30 June 2014 8,917 181,170 27,046 217,133

 
 Consolidated
 2014 2013
 $ $
   
Cost 322,892 267,006 
Accumulated depreciation (105,759) (72,350) 
Net carrying amount 217,133 194,656 
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11.  ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 
 

(a) Ordinary share capital 

 Consolidated 
 2014 2014 2013 2013 
 Number $ Number $ 
    
(i) Issued and paid up capital    
Ordinary shares fully paid 228,989,419 16,211,680 154,519,564 11,657,010 
Employee share plan shares - - 3,000,000 - 
Total Issued and paid up capital 228,989,419 16,211,680 157,519,564 11,657,010 
   
(ii) Unissued shares   
Unissued shares - - 39,379,890 2,362,793 
Employee share plan shares 3,000,000 - - - 
Total Unissued shares - - 39,379,890 2,362,793 
   
Total Ordinary share capital 231,989,419 16,211,680 196,899,454 14,019,803 

 
(b) Movement in ordinary share capital 

 Consolidated 
 2014 2014 2013 2013 
 Number $ Number $ 
(i) Issued and paid up capital    
Balance at the beginning of the year 157,519,564 11,657,010 75,343,702 7,715,081 
Shares issued under non-renounceable rights 
issue - - 50,029,470 2,501,473 
Shares issued under Tiger subscription agreement 
and non-renounceable rights issue shortfall - - 32,146,392 1,607,320 
Shares issued under additional placement to EBH 23,575,427 1,414,526 - - 
Shares issued under ”Top-up rights” to EBH and 
Tiger 8,514,538 510,872 - - 
Transfer from unissued shares 39,379,890 2,362,793 - - 
Costs relating to issue of shares - (325,573) - (166,864) 
Share plan shares - 592,052 - - 

Balance at end of the year 228,989,419 16,211,680 157,519,564 11,657,010 
   
(ii) Unissued shares    
Balance at the beginning of the year 39,379,890 2,362,793 - - 
Unissued shares due under contract 1 - - 39,379,890 2,362,793 
Unissued employee share plan shares 2 3,000,000 - - - 
Transfer to issued shares (39,379,890) (2,362,793) - - 
Balance at end of the year 3,000,000 - 39,379,890 2,362,793 

Notes 
1. Unissued share were issued on the 4 July 2013. 
2. During the year 3,000,000 share plan shares were granted to Mr Ryan as part of his remuneration package. 
 
(c) Movement in options 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2014 2013 2013 
 Number $ Number $ 
    
Balance at the beginning of the year - 291,190 35,036,327 291,190 
Options expired – 30 June 2014 - - (35,036,327) - 
Balance at end of the year - 291,190 - 291,190 

 
(d) Terms and conditions of contributed equity 
 
Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Company, to 
participate in proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on 
shares held. 

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.
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12.  RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Accumulated losses   
Movements in accumulated losses were as follows:   
   
Balance at beginning of financial year 9,081,239 5,176,233 
Net loss for the year 2,788,971 3,905,006 
Balance at end of financial year 11,870,210 9,081,239 

 
 Consolidated 
 

Option 
premium 
reserve 

Share-based 
payments 
reserve 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

 
Total 

 $ $ $ $
     
Reserves     
Movement in reserves were as follows:     
     
At 1 July 2012 291,190 627,710 (1,192) 917,708 
Foreign currency translation - - 118,163 118,163 

At 30 June 2013 291,190 627,710 116,971 1,035,871 
    
At 1 July 2013 291,190 627,710 116,971 1,035,871
Loan settlement 117,000  117,000
Transfer to issued share capital (592,052)  (592,052)
Share based payment 40,254  40,254
Foreign currency translation - - (396,731) (396,731)

At 30 June 2014 291,190 192,912 (279,760) 204,342

 
Nature and purpose of reserves 
Option issue reserve 
This reserve is used to accumulate the net proceeds received from the issue of options. 
 
Share-based payments reserve 
This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to directors, consultants or employees as 
part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 13 for further details. 
 
 

Foreign currency translation reserve  

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. 
 
 
13.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS  
 
Employee share plans 
 
Schemes under which shares may be issued by the Company to directors, consultants or employees for no 
cash consideration were approved by the shareholders at the 2009 Annual General Meeting. The Plan was not 
renewed at the Company’s 2012 Annual General Meeting and as such should the Company issue shares to 
directors, consultants and employees under the Plan, the issue will impact the Company’s 15% placement 
capacity under ASX listing rule 7.1. 
 
Participants of the Plan are determined by the Board and can be directors, consultants or employees to the 
Company. The Board considers length of service, seniority, responsibilities, potential contribution and any other 
relevant matters in determining eligibility of potential participants. 
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The issue price for the shares issued under the Plan is not less than the weighted average share price for the 
last five trading days immediately preceding the offer to the participant. The market value of shares issued 
under the scheme, measured as the weighted average market price on the day of issue of the shares, is 
recognised within the share-based payments reserve in the Statement of Financial Position and as a cost over 
the period the shares vest. Where share plan shares are granted with performance market conditions, the 
vesting condition is taken into account when estimating the fair value of the share plan shares by applying a 
discount rate for the probability of achieving the condition. 
 
A participant who is invited to subscribe for shares under the Plan may also be invited to apply for a loan up to 
the amount payable in respect of the shares accepted by the participant. These loans are to be made on the 
following terms: 
 Interest free; 
 Applied directly against the issue price of the shares to be acquired under the Plan; 
 For a term to be determined by the Board; 
 Repayable to the extent of the lesser of the issue price of the relevant shares issued, less any cash  

 dividends applied against the outstanding principal; and the last market sale price of the shares on 
 the  date of repayment of the loan; 

 The term of the loan shall be four (4) years from the date of issue of the shares. 
 The loan must be repaid in full prior to expiry of the loan;  
 The Company will have a lien over the shares in respect of which a loan is outstanding; and 
 Shares issued under the Plan are not transferable while a loan amount in respect of those shares remains 

payable. 
 
The following share-based payment arrangements were in place during the current and prior periods: 
 

 Number Grant date Loan period 

Repayment 
amount per 

share 

Fair value at 
grant date per 

share 
  $ $

11 December 2009 plan shares1 3,000,000 11/12/2009 4 years $0.039 $0.158 
L Ryan – Class A plan shares2 1,000,000 6/12/2013 N/A N/A $0.045 
L Ryan – Class B plan shares3 1,000,000 6/12/2013 N/A N/A $0.032 
L Ryan – Class C plan shares4 1,000,000 6/12/2013 N/A N/A $0.023 

Notes: 
1. The limited recourse loan was settled on 7 October 2013. 
2. Plan shares will vest upon the employee completing 12 month’s service in the role of Chief Executive Officer of the 

Company. 
3. Plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or greater than $30 million. 
4. Plan shares will vest upon the Company achieving a Market Capitalisation of equal to or greater than $50 million. 
 
The fair value at grant date of the Plan shares with limited recourse loans is independently determined using a 
Black and Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the 
impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the 
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.  
 
All shares issued under the Plan with non-recourse loans are considered to be options. Therefore, the fair value 
of shares issued under the Plan is determined in the same way as options would be. 
 
Other share-based payments 
 
The Company makes share-based payments to consultants and/or service providers from time to time, not 
under any specific plan. The shares and options are issued in accordance with the relevant consultancy or 
service provider agreements. 
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14.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Operating lease commitments – Group as lessee 
 
The Group has entered into a commercial lease for office premises in the Republic of Zambia and Perth, 
Western Australia.  The Zambian leases have a minimum term of one year and is renewable every year 
thereafter and the Perth lease is a renewable two year option. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee 
by entering into this lease.  The Group also holds an office equipment lease. 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Within one year 36,153 - 
After one year but not more than five years 14,377 - 
More than five years - - 
 50,530 - 

 
Exploration commitments 
 
The Group has certain obligations to perform minimum exploration work and to expend minimum amounts of 
money on such work on mining tenements. These obligations may be varied from time to time subject to 
approval and are expected to be fulfilled in the normal course of the operations of the Group. These 
commitments have not been provided for in the financial statements.  

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations in exploring and evaluating areas of interest, it is difficult to 
accurately forecast the nature and amount of future expenditure beyond the next year. Expenditure may be 
reduced by seeking exemption from individual commitments, by relinquishment of tenure or any new joint 
venture arrangements. Expenditure may be increased when new tenements are granted or joint venture 
agreements amended.  

The minimum expenditure commitment on the tenements is as follows: 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Within one year 
2 to 5 years 
Over 5 years 

1,661,492 
2,284,552 

- 

521,360 
1,712,940 

193,200 
 
Other expenditure commitments 
 
The Group has executed other exploration and administration expenditure commitments for exploration work to 
in relation to the Zambian Copper Project. Details of the exploration expenditure commitments are detailed as 
follows: 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Within one year - 184,353 
2 to 5 years - - 
Over 5 years - - 

 
Contingencies  
 
Native Title 
 
It is possible that native title, as defined in the Native Title Act 1993, might exist over land in which the Company 
has an interest. It is impossible at this stage to quantify the impact (if any) that the existence of native title may 
have on the operations of the Company. However, at the date of this report, the Directors are aware that 
applications for native title claims have been accepted by the Native Title Tribunal over tenements held by the 
Company. 
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ASX waivers from listing rule 6.18  
 
Tiger Resources Limited 
In October 2012, ASX Limited (ASX) granted the Company a waiver from Listing Rule 6.18 to the extent 
necessary to permit Tiger Resources Limited (‘Tiger”) to maintain, by way of a right to participate in any issue of 
shares or to subscribe for shares, its percentage interest in capital of the Company (the “Top-up Right”) in 
respect of a diluting event which occurs or is announced following entry into a subscription agreement (the 
“Subscription Agreement”) between the Company and Tiger dated on or around 27 August 2012, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1.1 The Top-up Right lapses on the earlier of: 
1.1.1 the holding of Tiger in the Company falling below 15% and; 
1.1.2 the strategic relationship between the Company and Tiger ceasing or changing in such a  way 
that it effectively ceases. 

1.2 The Top-up Right may only be transferred to an entity in the wholly owned group of Tiger. 
1.3 Any securities issued under the Top-up Right are offered to Tiger for consideration that is: 

1.3.1 No more favourable than cash consideration offered by third parties (in the case of issues of 
securities to third parties for cash consideration); or 
1.3.2 Equivalent in value to non-cash consideration offered by third parties (in the case of issues of 
securities to third parties for non-cash consideration). 

1.4 The number of securities that may be issued to Tiger under the Top-up Right in the case of any diluting 
event must not be greater than the number required in order for Tiger to maintain its percentage holding 
in the issued capital of the Company immediately before that diluting event. 

1.5 The Company discloses a summary of the Top-up Right to persons who may subscribe for securities 
under a prospectus. 

 
Eagle Brilliant Holdings Limited 
In June 2013, ASX granted the Company a waiver from ASX listing rule 6.18, to the extent necessary to permit 
Eagle Brilliant Holdings Limited (“EBH”) to maintain, by way of a right to participate in any issue of shares or to 
subscribe for shares, its percentage interest in the issued capital of the Company (the “Top-up Right”). This 
Top-up Right was granted in respect of a diluting event which occurs or is announced following completion of 
the term sheet (“Term sheet”) entered into between the Company and EBH as announced on 24 June 2013. 

The Top-up Right is subject to the following conditions: 

1.1 The Top-up Right lapses on the earlier of: 
1.1.1 EBH’s holding in the Company falling below 19.90%; 
1.1.2 EBH’s holding in the Company exceeding 25%; or 
1.1.3 the strategic relationship between the Company and EBH ceasing or changing in such a way 

that it effectively ceases. 
1.2 The Top-up Right may only be transferred to an entity in the wholly owned group of Tiandilong Group 

Limited (“TDL Group”). 
1.3 Any securities issued under the Top-up Right are offered to EBH for cash consideration that is: 

1.3.1 no more favourable than cash consideration paid by third parties (in the case of issues of 
securities to third parties for cash consideration); or 

1.3.2 equivalent in value to non-cash consideration offered by third parties (in the case of issues of 
securities to third parties for non-cash consideration). 

1.4  The number of securities that may be issued to EBH under the Top-up Right in the case of any diluting 
event must not be greater than the number in order for EBH to maintain its percentage holding in the 
issued share capital of the Company immediately before that diluting event. 

1.5  The Company discloses a summary of the Top-up Right to persons who may subscribe for securities 
under a prospectus, and undertakes to include in each annual report a summary of the Top-up Right. 
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15.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Chrysalis Resources Limited and the 
subsidiaries listed in the following table: 

 Country of % Equity Interest
Name Incorporation 2014 2013

Horizon Copper Zambia Limited Republic of Zambia Limited 100% 100% 

Zambian Copper Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100% 

Sedgwick Resources Limited Republic of Zambia Limited 99.99% 99.99% 

 
Chrysalis Resources Limited is the ultimate Australian parent entity and ultimate parent of the Group. Related 
party transactions during the year consisted of loan advances and fees paid to related parties of the Group. All 
intergroup transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. 
 
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties for the 
relevant financial year: 

  
Income from 

Related Parties 
Expenditure to 
Related Parties 

Amounts Owed 
by Related 

parties at year 
end 

Amounts Owed 
to Related 

parties at year 
end 

  $ $ $ $ 
      

Equiti partners 1 2014 - 138,429 - - 

 2013 - 154,718 - 30,430 

Craigstone Pty Ltd 2 2014 - 64,906 - - 

 2013 - - - 78,000 

Australasian Minerals & Trading Pty Ltd 3 2014 - - - - 

 2013 - 2,071 - - 

Ruby Hall Pty Ltd 4 2014 - - - - 

 2013 - 1,215 - - 

Yangtze Trust 5 2014 - 165,356 - - 

 2013 - - - - 

Notes: 
1. Mr G Kidner, an Executive director, is a director of Equiti Partners. During the financial year, Equiti Partners received fees for 

accounting, secretarial, executive consultancy fees, administration services and reimbursement of car parking facilities from the 
Company. 

2. Mr J Noakes, a director of Sedgwick Resources Limited, is a director of Craigstone Pty Ltd. During the financial year, Mr Noakes 
received geological exploration consultancy fees from the Company. 

3. Australasian Minerals & Trading Pty Ltd is the trustee for the Sedgwick Resources Unit Trust of which Mr J Noakes is a beneficiary. 
4. Mr A Paul, a Non-Executive director, is a director of Ruby Hall Pty Ltd. During the prior financial year, Ruby Hall Pty Ltd lent $195,000 

via an unsecured loan to the Company. The loan was repaid during September 2012 with interest of $1,215 calculated at 8% per 
annum in accordance with the terms of contract with the Company. 

5. Mr Jian Hua Sang, a Non-Executive directors is a beneficiary of Yangtze Trust.  During the financial year Mr Sang received a 
commission on funds raised from EBH. 

 
For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has not made any allowance for doubtful debts relating to amounts 
owed by related parties due to solid payment history (2012: $nil). An impairment assessment is undertaken 
each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates to determine whether there is objective evidence that a related party receivable is impaired. 
When such objective evidence exists, the Group recognises an allowance for the impairment loss. 
 
 
16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
(a) Financial risk management objectives 
 
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks and current trade and other payables. 
 
The main purpose of financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group also has other 
financial instruments such as trade debtors and creditors which arise directly from its operations. 
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The Company does not speculate in the trading of derivative instruments. The main risks the Group is exposed 
to through its financial instruments are currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below: 
 
(b) Capital risk management objectives 
 
The Group manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the 
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 
 
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2013. 
 
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity 
holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings. None of the Group’s entities 
are subject to externally imposed capital requirements. Operating cash flows are used to maintain and expand 
operations, as well as to make routine expenditures such as general administrative outgoings. 
 
(c) Categories of financial instruments 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Financial assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 694,497 456,885 
Trade and other receivables 79,288 2,425,042 
 773,785 2,881,927 
Financial liabilities   
Trade and other payables  218,060 406,936 
 218,060 406,936 

 
 
(d) Market risk 
 
The Group’s activities expose it mainly to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and 
changes in interest rates.  
 
The Company’s subsidiary, Sedgwick Resources Limited, exposes the Group to fluctuations in foreign currency 
exchange rates by undertaking mineral exploration on tenements within the Republic of Zambia.  
 
There have been no changes at the reporting date to the Group’s manner in which it manages and measures 
the risk from the previous period. 
 
(i) Price risk 
 
Given the current level of operations, the Group is not exposed to price risk. 
 
(ii) Interest rate risk 
 
The Group has exposure to the risks of changes in market interest rates relating to its cash and cash 
equivalents. The Group maintains funds at both fixed and floating interest rates, with the risk managed by the 
Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate liquid funds. The Group’s exposure to 
interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of 
this note. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities in the form of receivables, payables and current borrowings were non-interest 
bearing during the year. Unsecured loans and credit cards had floating interest rates during the year. 
 
During the year ended 30 June 2014, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower than the 
prevailing rates realised, with all other variables held constant, there would have been an immaterial change in 
the post tax loss for the year. The impact on equity would have been the same. 
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 Consolidated 
 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 

 

Weighted 
average 

interest rate Balance 

Weighted 
average 

interest rate Balance 
 % $ % $ 
   
Cash balances 2.62% 694,497 2.51% 456,885 

 
(iii) Foreign currency exchange risk 
 
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange 
rate fluctuations arise. The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities at the reporting date is as follows: 
 
 Assets Liabilities 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 
 $ $ $ $ 
    
Zambian Kwacha (KWA) 100,468 165,910 49,737 105,120 

 
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
 
The Group is exposed to Zambian Kwacha (KWA) currency fluctuations.  
 
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Australian Dollar (AUD) 
against the relevant currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to 
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign 
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary 
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. 
The sensitivity analysis includes cash balances held in KWA and trade creditors and other payables held in 
KWA and USD. A positive number indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the AUD strengthens 
against the relevant currency. For a weakening Australian Dollar against the relevant currency there would be 
an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity and the balances would be negative. 
 
  Consolidated 

 
  2014 2013 
  Profit / (loss) Equity 

increase / 
(decrease) 

Profit / (loss) Equity 
increase / 
(decrease) 

AUD strengthens KWA (5,073) 5,073 (6,079) 6,079 
    
AUD weakens KWA 5,073 (5,073) 6,079 (6,079) 

Note: foreign currency gains or losses on intercompany loans are transferred to equity in accordance with Note 1. Therefore 
there is no impact on the Group’s loss. 
 
(e) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 
loss to the Group. The Group has adopted the policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining 
sufficient collateral or other security where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from 
defaults. The Group measures credit risk on a fair value basis.  

The Group’s cash balances are held with a major Australian lending institution. The Group does not have any 
other significant credit risk exposure to a single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar 
characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparty is a bank with high credit 
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any provisions for losses, 
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the fair value of any collateral 
or other security obtained. 
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(f) Liquidity risk management 
 
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and ensuring 
sufficient cash and marketable securities are available to meet current and future commitments of the Group. 
Due to the nature of the Group’s activities, being mineral exploration, the Group does not have ready access to 
credit facilities, with the primary source of funding being equity raisings. The Board of Directors constantly 
monitors the state of equity markets in conjunction with the Group’s current and future funding requirements, 
with a view to initiating appropriate capital raisings as required. 

The financial liabilities of the Group are confined to trade and other payables, joint venture liabilities and 
unsecured loans as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position. All trade and other payables are non-
interest bearing and due within 12 months of reporting date. 
 
Liquidity and interest rate risk tables 
 

 

Weighted 
average 
interest 

rate 
Less than 
1 month 

1 – 3 
months 

3 months 
– 1 year 

1 – 5 
years 5+ years 

 % $ $ $ $ $
       
2014       
Non-interest bearing - - 218,033 - - - 
Variable interest rate instruments 18.50% - 27 - - - 
Fixed interest rate instruments - - - - - - 
       
2013       
Non-interest bearing - - 403,187 - - - 
Variable interest rate instruments 11.69% - 3,749 - - - 
Fixed interest rate instruments - - - - - - 

 
The above table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. These are based 
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be 
required to pay.  

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its financial assets. These are based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial assets. 
 

 

Weighted 
average 
interest 

rate 
Less than 
1 month 

1 – 3 
months 

3 months 
– 1 year 

1 – 5 
years 5+ years 

 % $ $ $ $ $
       
2014       
Non-interest bearing - - 106,670 - - -
Variable interest rate instruments 2.35% - 84,696 - - -
Fixed interest rate instruments 2.85%-3.45% - 503,131 - - -
Receivables - - 79,288 - - - 
       
2013       
Non-interest bearing - - 2,761,890 - - - 
Variable interest rate instruments 2.25% - 7,066 - - - 
Fixed interest rate instruments 4.00% - 50,722 - - - 
Receivables - - 50,316 - - - 

 
(g) Fair value of financial instruments 
 
For financial assets and liabilities, the net fair value approximates the carrying value. No financial assets and 
financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in standardised form. The Group has no financial 
assets where carrying amount exceeds net fair value at reporting date. 
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17.  AUDITOR REMUNERATION 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Remuneration of the auditors of the Company for:   
- audit and review services   
 HLB Mann Judd Australia 29,900 36,200 
 HLB Reliance Zambia 20,897 - 
 BDO Zambia 4,961 26,828 
- other services   
 HLB Mann Judd Australia (Compliance) 30,000  
 HLB Reliance Zambia (Compliance) 16,501  
 102,259 63,028 

 
 
18.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 
 
Refer to the remuneration report contained in the directors’ report for details of the remuneration paid or payable 
to each member of the Group’s key management personnel (KMP) for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the company and the Group during the year are as follows: 

 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Short-term benefits 968,699 746,937 
Post-employment benefits 41,461 28,822 
Share-based payments 40,254 - 
 1,050,414 775,759 

 
Short-term employee benefits 
These amounts include fees and benefits paid to the non-executive Chair and non-executive directors as well as 
all salary, paid leave benefits, fringe benefits, consultancy fees and cash bonuses awarded to executive 
directors and other KMP. 
 
Post-employment benefits 
These amounts are the current-year’s superannuation contributions made during the year and termination 
benefits. 
 
Share-based payments 
These amounts represent the expense related to the participation of KMP in equity-settled benefit schemes as 
measured by the fair value of the options, rights and shares granted on grant date. 
 
 
19.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
On 8 July 2014 the Company announced a fully underwritten Non-Renounceable Entitlement Issue.  The offer 
gave existing eligible shareholders the opportunity to subscribe for 1 new share for every 2 shares held in the 
capital of the Company on 15 July 2014.  The offer comprised up to 114,494,709 new fully paid ordinary shares 
at 1 cent per new share to raise up to $1,144,947 before costs. 

- On 27 August 2014 the Company provided notice of shortfall of 88,793,752 ordinary fully paid shares at 1 
cent, in accordance with the underwriting agreement with Adrian Paul. 

- On 2 September 2014 26,200,957 ordinary shares were allotted at 1 cent pursuant to the offer document 
released on the 18 July 2014. 

- On 15 September 2014 the Company advised of the completion by the underwriter of the entitlement issue 
by the placement of the remaining 88,293,752 shortfall shares, amounting to $882,937.52. 
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On 8 September 2014 the Company announced an exclusive licence and option agreement with Fortescue 
Metals Group for the West Angelas Project Tenements, for a consideration of $100,000 at Commencement; and 
if not terminated beforehand, $100,000 on the first anniversary of the Commencement Date. 

No other matters or circumstance have arisen since 30 June 2014 which significantly affected or could 
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated group in future financial years. 
 
 
20.  INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATION 
 
During the prior year, Talisman Mining Limited earned a 62.7% joint venture interest in the Halloween West 
project by spending $500,000 on exploration within three years from the commencement of the original Farm In 
agreement. Chrysalis retains the remaining 37.3% interest in the project. A formal joint venture agreement was 
executed with Talisman in the June quarter. Details of the work performed on the project during the year are 
disclosed in the Company Overview section of this report. 
 
The share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the jointly controlled operation, which are included 
in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
  
Financial Position  
   
Current assets   
Cash 18,692 - 
Trade and other receivables 124 - 
Total current assets 18,816 - 
   
Non-current assets   
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 86,853 344,508 
Total non-current assets 86,853 344,508 
   
Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables 20,400 - 
Total current liabilities 20,400 - 
   
Net 37.3% interest in Joint Venture 85,269 344,508 
   
Financial performance   
   
Loss for the year 269 - 
Total comprehensive loss for the year 269 - 

 
Refer to Note 14 for details on commitments. 
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21.  PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES 
 
 Consolidated 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
   
Financial position   
   
Assets   
Current assets 885,101 2,715,954 
Non-current assets 5,784,186 4,089,676 
Total assets 6,669,287 6,805,630 
   
Liabilities   
Current liabilities 147,923 301,815 
Total Liabilities 147,923 301,815 
   
Equity   
Ordinary share capital 16,211,680 14,019,803 
Retained earnings (10,174,418) (8,434,888) 
Reserves   
      Share-based payments 192,912 627,710 
      Options issue reserve 291,190 291,190 
Total equity 6,521,364 6,503,815 
   
Financial performance   
   
Loss for the year (1,739,530) (3,275,925) 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,739,530) (3,275,925) 

 
The parent entity has agreed to provide financial support to its subsidiary Sedgwick Resources Limited for the 
period beyond 30 June 2014. 
 
The recoverability of the parent company loans and investment in its subsidiaries is dependent upon the 
successful development and commercial exploitation or sale of the underlying exploration assets. 
 
The parent entity has no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 other than those disclosed in Note 14 above.  
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1. In the opinion of the directors of Chrysalis Resources Limited (the ‘Company’): 

a. the accompanying financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 
including: 

i. giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its 
performance for the year then ended;  and 

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001, 
professional reporting requirements and other mandatory requirements. 

b. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable. 

c. the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in 
accordance with Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. 

This declaration is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 
Dr Neale Fong 
Non-Executive Chairman 
 
Perth, 30 September 2014 
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